
 
Agenda No. 2011–24 December 05, 2011 Page 1 of 3 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA NO. 2011–24 

REGULAR MEETING December 05, 2011 
FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

800 CUSHMAN ST  REET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 
I 7:00 P.M. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
 
2. INVOCATION 
 
 
3. FLAG SALUTATION 
 
 
4. CITIZENS COMMENTS, oral communications to Council on any item not up for Public 

Hearing.  Testimony is limited to five (5) minutes.  Any person wishing to speak needs to 
complete the register located in the hallway.  Normal standards of decorum and courtesy 
should be observed by all speakers.  Remarks should be directed to the City Council as 
a body rather than to any particular Council Member or member of the staff.  In 
consideration of others, kindly silence all cell phone, electronic and messaging devices.  

 
 
5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 
 

(Approval of Consent Agenda passes all routine items indicated by an asterisk (*).  
Consent Agenda items are not considered separately unless a Council Member so 
requests.  In the event of such a request, the item is returned to the General Agenda). 

 
 
6. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 
 
7. SPECIAL ORDERS 
 

a) The Fairbanks City Council will convene as a Board of Adjustment to 
consider scheduling the appeal, and possible appointment of, a hearing 
officer in the matter of the below-stated decision of the Fairbanks North 
Star Borough Planning Commission: 

 
 A request by Wayne Sandstrom regarding a Bed and Breakfast 

Residence.   

AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 1 of 45



 
Agenda No. 2011–24 December 05, 2011 Page 2 of 3 

b) The Fairbanks City Council, Sitting as a Committee of the Whole, will hear 
interested citizens concerned with the below-referenced Liquor License 
Application for Transfer.  Public Testimony will be taken and limited to five 
(5) minutes.   

 
 Transfer of Location and Name Change: 

 Type: Beverage Dispensary 
 License: Rock N Rodeo Bar & Grill, #1377 
 Licensee/Applicant: Scruff-N-Pork’s Inc. 
 Physical Location  600 Old Steese Highway, Fairbanks 

 Current DBA: Greyhound Lounge, #1377 
 Licensee: Scruff-N-Pork’s Inc. 
 Location: 1351 Cushman Street, Fairbanks 

 
c) The Fairbanks City Council, Sitting as a Committee of the Whole, will hear 

interested citizens concerned with the below-referenced Liquor License 
Application(s) for renewal.  Public Testimony will be taken and limited to 
five (5) minutes.   

 

Lic # 
Establishment 

Name 
License Type Premise Location Owner Name 

1639 Alaska Salmon Bake 
Restaurant/Eating 
Place-Seasonal 

2300 Airport Way Intra-Sea Inc 

3118 V.F.W. Post #3629 Club 324 2nd St 
V.F.W. Golden Heart 
Post #3629 

3151 Fred Meyer 485 Package Store 3755 Airport Way Fred Meyer Stores Inc. 

4168 Lower LA 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
636 28th Ave Kelco Properties Inc 

4772 Ajimi Restaurant 
Restaurant/Eating 

Place 
550 Third Avenue Kwang Yul Lee 

4816 Mayan Palace 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
3401 Airport Way 

Taco Azteca 
Incorporated 

4831 
Wasabi Bay 
Restaurant 

Restaurant/Eating 
Place 

1448 S Cushman St Chung W Pak 

4846 
Wal-Mart Super-
center #2722 

Package Store 
537 Johansen 
Expressway 

Wal-Mart Stores Inc. 

 
 
8. MAYOR'S COMMENTS AND REPORT 
 
 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

a) Ordinance No. 5866 – An Ordinance to Amend Fairbanks General Code 
by Enacting FGC Section 1-20, Code of Ethics.  Introduced by Mayor 
Cleworth.  SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING. 

 
b) Ordinance No. 5867 – An Ordinance to Repeal Chapter 74, Article VI, of 

the Fairbanks General Code, Occupational Privilege Tax.  Introduced by 
Mayor Cleworth.  SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING. 

AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 2 of 45



 
Agenda No. 2011–24 December 05, 2011 Page 3 of 3 

c) Ordinance No. 5868 – An Ordinance to Repeal Chapter 26, Article V, 
Section 26-201 of the Fairbanks General Code, Residential Emergency 
Services Tax.  Introduced by Mayor Cleworth.  SECOND READING AND 
PUBLIC HEARING. 

 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

*a) Ordinance No. 5869 – An Ordinance Amending Fairbanks General Code 
Chapter 66, Section 66-43, Senior Citizen Rate.  Introduced by Mayor 
Cleworth.   

 
*b) Ordinance No. 5870 – An Ordinance Authorizing Sale of Surplus Property 

to the Korean Community of Fairbanks, Inc.  Introduced by Mayor 
Cleworth.   

 
 
11. DISCUSSION ITEMS (INFORMATION AND REPORT)  
 

 Committee Reports 
 
 
12. COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL 
 

*a) Appointment to the Fairbanks North Star Borough Planning Commission.   
 

*b) Appointment to the Permanent Fund Review Board.   
 
 
13. COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
 
14. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
 
15. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 
 
 
16. EXECUTIVE SESSION – Labor Negotiations: PSEA and IBEW 
 
 
17. ADJOURNMENT 

AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 3 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 4 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 5 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 6 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 7 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 8 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 9 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 10 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 11 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 12 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 13 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 14 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 15 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 16 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 17 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 18 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 19 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 20 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 21 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 22 of 45



      Introduced by: Mayor Cleworth 
         Date: November 21, 2011   

 
ORDINANCE NO. 5866   

 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND FAIRBANKS GENERAL CODE BY 

ENACTING FGC SECTION 1-20, CODE OF ETHICS 
 

 WHEREAS, high moral and ethical standards among City officials and employees are 

essential to assure the trust, respect, and confidence of citizens of this City; and  

WHEREAS, holding public office or employment is a public trust and as one safeguard 

of that trust, the people require officials and employees to adhere to a code of ethics; and 

WHEREAS, while certain sections of the City Charter and City Code address ethical 

behavior, it is important to address the subject in one specific section; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows:   

 Section 1. That Fairbanks General Code is amended by adding a new Section 1-20 
Code of Ethics as follows:   
 

Section 1-20. Code of Ethics 
 
  (a) Applicability. This Code applies to all elected officials, all appointed 
officials, and all employees of the City of Fairbanks.   
 
  (b) Provisions.   
 

1. Everyone subject to this Code shall avoid impropriety and the 
appearance of impropriety and act in a manner that promotes 
public confidence in the integrity and the impartiality of City 
government.   

 
2. All City business must be conducted in a manner that preserves the 

integrity of the governmental process and avoids conflicts of 
interest and ethical concerns. 

 
3. Any potential conflict of interest must be disclosed at the earliest 

possible time to the appropriate authority.   
 
5. The City will look to the following provisions of the Alaska 

Executive Branch Ethics Act as guidance in interpreting the 
provisions of this Code and in determining if specific conduct is a 
violation of the standard set by this Code: 

AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 23 of 45



Ordinance No. 5866 
Page 2 

 
  - AS 39.52.120.  Misuse of official position. 
  - AS 39.52.130.  Improper Gifts. 
  - AS 39.52.140.  Improper use or disclosure of information. 
  - AS 39.52.150.  Improper influence in [state] grants, 

    contracts, leases, or loans. 
    - AS 39.52.160.  Improper representation. 
    - AS 39.52.170.  Outside employment restricted. 
    - AS 39.52.180.  Restriction on employment after leaving  
         [state] service.   
    - AS 39.52.190.  Aiding a violation.   

 
 

Section 2. That the effective date of this ordinance shall be the ____ day of 
____________ 2011.   

 

             
      Jerry Cleworth, Mayor 
 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT: 
ADOPTED:  
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
             
Janey Hovenden, CMC, City Clerk  Paul Ewers, City Attorney 

AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 24 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 25 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 26 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 27 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 28 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 29 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 30 of 45



      Introduced by:Mayor Cleworth 
        Date: November 21, 2011 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 5867 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL CHAPTER 74, ARTICLE VI, OF THE 
FAIRBANKS GENERAL CODE, OCCUPATIONAL PRIVILEGE TAX 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council enacted F.G.C. Sections 74-200 through 74-222 in 2006, 

providing for an occupational privilege tax; and  

WHEREAS, the tax has never been collected since the Council suspended levy of the tax 

prior to enforcement, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows:   
  

Section 1. That Fairbanks General Code Chapter 74, Article VI, (Sections74-
200 through 74-222), Occupational Privilege Tax, is hereby repealed. 
 
Section 2. That the effective date of this ordinance shall be the ____ day of 
______________________ 2011.   
 

             
      Jerry Cleworth, Mayor 
 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT: 
ADOPTED:  
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
             
Janey Hovenden, CMC, City Clerk  Paul Ewers, City Attorney 

AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 31 of 45



      Introduced by:Mayor Cleworth 
        Date: November 21, 2011 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 5868 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL CHAPTER 26, ARTICLE V, SECTION 26-
201 OF THE FAIRBANKS GENERAL CODE, RESIDENTIAL 

EMERGENCY SERVICES TAX 
 

 WHEREAS, the City Council enacted F.G.C. 26-201 in 2007, providing for a residential 

emergency services tax; and  

WHEREAS, the tax has never been collected since the Council suspended levy of the tax 

prior to enforcement, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows:   
  

Section 1. Fairbanks General Code Chapter 26, Article V, Section 26-201, 
Residential emergency services tax, is hereby repealed. 
 
Section 2. That the effective date of this ordinance shall be the ____ day of 
_______________ 2011.   

 

             
      Jerry Cleworth, Mayor 
 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT: 
ADOPTED:  
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
             
Janey Hovenden, CMC, City Clerk  Paul Ewers, City Attorney 

AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 32 of 45



      Introduced by: Mayor Cleworth 
Finance Committee Review:  November 29, 2011 

         Date: December 5, 2011   
 

ORDINANCE NO. 5869  
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING FAIRBANKS GENERAL CODE 
CHAPTER 66, SECTION 66-43, SENIOR CITIZEN RATE 

 
 WHEREAS, the Finance Department staff and City Finance Committee have 
reviewed the provisions of the Senior citizen rate and its administration and made 
suggestions to increase efficiency and improve the process for the City’s senior citizens,  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF FAIRBANKS, as follows (new text in underline bold font, deleted text in strikeout 
font):   
 

Sec. 66-43. - Senior citizen rate. 
 
(a) A qualified senior citizen may apply to the office of the city clerk or the 
city finance department for the senior citizen rate. The senior citizen rate 
will shall be as provided in the city's schedule of fees and charges for 
services and will become effective the first billing quarter following a 
qualified filing.  
 
(b) The term “qualified senior citizen” as used in this section is 
defined as a person at least 65 years of age or a person at least 60 
years of age who is the widow or widower of a person who was 
receiving the senior citizen rate at the time of his/her death. The 
widow or widower must file a new application for the senior citizen 
rate and must meet the requirements of subsection (c).  
 
(b) (c) To receive the senior citizen rate of fees under this section a 
qualified senior citizen the applicant must: 
 
            (1)  Be a property owner and refuse customer. Be an owner of 
record of the property receiving the refuse service.  
 
            (2)  Reside at the residence of exemption. Occupy the property 
as a permanent place of abode. If the qualified senior citizen owns 
multiple properties, only the primary residence will be eligible for the 
senior rate. 
 
            (3)  File for the senior citizen rate with the city clerk or the city 
finance department, provide proof of age, and have the application 
signature notarized. A qualified senior citizen need not file such an                   

AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 33 of 45



Ordinance No. 5869 
Page 2 

application for successive years if there is no change in ownership, 
no change in permanent place of  abode, and no change as to the 
owner of record. 
 
            (4)  Verify annually that the senior rate still applies. Maintain all 
City accounts in current status. The senior rate will be revoked if a 
City account(s) is delinquent. The senior rate will be reinstated                   
without requiring a new filling for the senior rate when the account(s) 
are brought into current status.  
 
            (5)  If living in a residence provided service pursuant to section 66-
41(a)(2), all residents must be qualified.  
 
(c)  The term "qualified senior citizen" as applied in this section shall be 
defined as a person 65 years and older.   
 
(d)  The applicant will be required to show proof of age at time of filing. 
Annually, the city finance department will review a minimum of 10 
percent of the accounts receiving the senior rate to determine 
eligibility and compliance with this section.  
 
(e) The applicant qualified senior citizen receiving a senior rate or 
their designated representative is responsible for notifying the city clerk 
City of Fairbanks or Ffinance Office department of any changes in 
ownership, residency, or permanent place of abode. to their eligibility for 
the senior citizen rate.  Any account that is  receiving the senior rate 
for any period during which it is not eligible will be billed for the 
ineligible period at the regular refuse collection rate and charged 
interest at the current rate for delinquent refuse accounts.  

 
Section 4. That the effective date of this ordinance shall be the ____ day of 

December 2011.   
 

              
       Jerry Cleworth, Mayor 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
ADOPTED: 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Janey Hovenden, CMC, City Clerk  Paul Ewers, City Attorney 

AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 34 of 45



      Introduced By:  Mayor Jerry Cleworth 
           Date:  December 6, 2011 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 5870 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING SALE OF SURPLUS PROPERTY TO 
THE KOREAN COMMUNITY OF FAIRBANKS, INC. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks is the owner of Lots 13, 14, 15, & 16, Block 31, 
Bjerremark Subdivision (the “Property”), located at 24th Avenue and Rickert Street, as 
shown on attached “Exhibit A”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Korean Community of Fairbanks, Inc, an Alaska non-profit 
corporation, has respectfully requested permission to purchase the Property at less than 
full value, with tender offer of $30,000 by letter of October 28, 2011, attached as “Exhibit 
B”, including a cash down payment of $10,000; and  
 

WHEREAS, Fairbanks General Code of Ordinances Section 70-44 provides that 
the City may sell to a non-profit organization without public sale and for less than market 
value, whenever in the judgment of the City Council it is advantageous to do so; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Korean Community of Fairbanks intends to construct an English 
language learning center for students and seniors on the Property, a non-profit purpose 
beneficial to the community; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City administration has reviewed said Property and determined 
that same is not required for municipal purposes and can be sold to others; and  
  
 WHEREAS, it is the sense of the City Council that sale of the Property described 
above for the purposes stated is in the best interest of the community. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows: 
  

SECTION 1. DETERMINATION: That the terms and conditions 
expressed in the Korean Community of Fairbanks offer letter of October 
28, 2011 are hereby agreed to and accepted, provided that 6% interest 
compounded monthly apply to the remaining balance, secured by Deed of 
Trust and Promissory Note, and that all associated costs be paid by 
purchaser. 
 
  SECTION 2. PURCHASE AGREEMENT: That a Real Estate 
Purchase Agreement as approved by the City Attorney be prepared and 
executed for the purposes herein. 
 
 SECTION 3.  RECISION: Any and all prior acts by the City Council 
which may affect sale of this property are hereby rescinded.  
 

AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 35 of 45



Ordinance No. 5870 
Page 2 of 2 

 SECTION 4. PERMISSIVE REFERENDUM:  This conveyance of 
real property is subject to the right of the voters, within thirty-days of sale, 
to reject a sale by permissive referendum under FGC Sec. 70-42, and the 
City Charter.  

 
SECTION 5. FORM OF CONVEYANCE:  That said property shall 

be conveyed by Statutory Quit Claim Deed.  
 
SECTION 6. CONDITIONS OF CONVEYANCE:  That said Deed 

shall contain a condition limiting the Property to non-profit use, and that 
the construction of the proposed facility on the Property be commenced 
within five years of years of conveyance. 
 
 SECTION 7. PENALTY FOR DEFAULT:  If construction of the 
facility is not commenced within five years of conveyance, title to the 
property shall revert to the City.  In such event, monies paid to the City 
shall be returned to purchasers, except that the City shall be entitled to 
retain interest paid as penalty for default.  
 
 SECTION 8. MAYORS AUTHORIZATION:  That the Mayor is 
hereby authorized and empowered to execute such agreements, deeds 
and instruments as necessary to complete sale of said property after 
Council approval. 
 

SECTION 9.  That the effective date of this ordinance shall be the 
17th day of December 2011. 

 
                                                                              
                JERRY CLEWORTH, Mayor 
 
 
 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 
ADOPTED: 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                           
JANEY HOVENDEN, CMC, City Clerk  PAUL EWERS, City Attorney  

AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 36 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 37 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 38 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 39 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 40 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 41 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 42 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 43 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 44 of 45



AGENDA PACKET - December 05, 2011 Page Page 45 of 45


	AGENDA - December 5, 2011 
	SPECIAL ORDERS
	Board of Adjustment-Sandstrom
	Liquor License Trasfer-Rock N Rodeo
	Liquor License Renewals (8)

	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	Ordinance No. 5866
	Ordinance No. 5867
	Ordinance No. 5868

	NEW BUSINESS
	Ordinance No. 5869
	Ordinance No. 5870

	COMMUNICATIONS
	Appointment-FNSB Planning Commission
	Appointment-Perm Fund Board




